MEMORANDUM

TO: City Council CrAIO
FROM: City Manager’s Office swegzgeljuomae
DATE: July 10, 2018

. .  125"ANNIVERSARY
SUBJECT: Committee Review e

Ad Hoc Committee on Health

Formed by the Mayor in 2016, this committee is tasked with securing increased
health services in our community including: physical therapy, memory care, urgent care
and senior living. (Meets 3@ Monday each Month) It is comprised of the Mayor, two
council members, City Manager and citizens.

Administrative And Finance Committee (pg. 1)

Reorganized in 2016 by Resolution No. 33 for 2016 this committee is tasked with
reviewing all administrative, finance and property issues and is an advisory board to
Council. It is comprised of three council members. (Meets as Needed)

All Hazard Mitigation (pg. 2-4)

Formed in 1996 by Resolution No. 40 for 1996 this committee is established as a
permanent advisory board for flood mitigation planning. Its members are set forth in the
resolution (Meets as Needed)

Area Commission on Transportation (pg. 5-8)

Council Representative serves as a liaison between City Council and the
Cascades West Area Commission on Transportation. The CWACT provides a forum for
local governments to collaborate on local, regional and State transportation issues in
the Linn County Region. The CWACT is chartered by the Oregon Transportation
Commission and provides input, advice, and recommendations to the OTC and the
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) on State transportation plans and
policies. (Meets last Thursday Every Other Month)

Board of Appeals (pg. 9-14)

Formed in 2008 by Ordinance. See SHMC 15.01.090. The Board of Appeals
holds a hearing to make decisions on appeals from orders made by the Building Official.
It is comprised of three citizens who are qualified in building construction. (Meets as
Needed).

Budget Committee (pg. 15-16)

Required by ORS and formed in 1963, the Budget Committee reviews the
proposed budget submitted by the City Budget Officer. The committee may approve the
proposed budget intact or change part or all of it prior to final approval. (Meets as
Needed)

Capitol Christmas Tree Committee

Formed by the Mayor in 2018, a Council representative serves as a liaison
between the City Council and all events regarding the 2018 Capitol Christmas Tree.
(Meets first and third Tuesdays Monthly)



Chamber of Commerce

Formed in 1987, a Council representative serves as a liaison between the City
Council and the Sweet Home Chamber of Commerce to inform the Council on issues of
the Chamber of Commerce. (Meets third Thursday Monthly)

Council of Governments
Formed in 1984, a Council representative serves as a liaison between the City
Council and the COG to inform the Council on issues of the Council of Governments.

Fire District

Formed in 1995, a Council representative serves as a liaison between the City
Council and the Sweet Home Fire and Ambulance District to inform the Council on
issues of the SHFAD.

Library Boards (pg- 17-19)

Formed in 1989 by Ordinance. SHMC 2.12. The Library Board is an advisory
board and makes recommendations to the City Council about rules and policies for the
efficient and effective operation of the library, its services and programs. (Meets first
Thursday Monthly)

Local Contract Review Board (pg. 20)

Formed in 1976 by Ordinance. SHMC 2.08. The Local Contract Review Board
(City Council) sets City procedures for procurements of goods and services for the City
and oversees the Public Improvement Projects of the City.

Park and Tree Committee (pg. 21-24)

Reorganized in 2017 by Ordinance No. 9 for 2017, the Park and Tree Committee
is an advisory board to the City Council regarding all matters related to parks, open
spaces and street trees. (Meets Third Wednesday Monthly)

Public And Traffic Safety Committee (pg. 21-24)

Reorganized in 2017 by Ordinance No. 9 for 2017, the Public And Traffic Safety
Committee is an advisory board to City Council regarding matters of safety. (Meets as
Needed)

Planning Commission (pg. 25-28)

Formed in 1975 by Ordinance. SHMC 2.20. The Planning Commission conducts
public meetings and public hearings relating to the City’s land use ordinances, including
zoning and subdivision regulations and performs other duties related to some aspect of
planning and development. (Meets first Monday Monthly)

Public Works
Formed in 1984 to inform the Council on issues of the Public Works Department.
This committee is comprised of three council members.

Solid Waste Advisory Council (pg. 29 — 42)

A Council Representative serves as a liaison between City Council and the
Environmental Health Department. The SWAC provides a forum for local governments
to collaborate on local, regional and State solid waste issues in the Linn County Region.
(Meets as Needed)



Youth Advisory Council (pg. 43-48)

Formed in 2004 by Resolution No. 2 for 2017. The YAC provides an opportunity
for the youth of Sweet Home to acquire a greater knowledge of and appreciation for the
political system through active participation in the system. (Meets Twice Monthly)



RESOLUTION NO.33 FOR 2016

A RESOLUTION COMBINING THE ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE
COMMITTEE AND THE PROPERTY COMMITTEE.

WHEREAS, the Sweet Home City Council has an Administration And
Finance Committee and a Property Committee made up of three city
councilors each to advise the city council on topics, issues,
subjects and matters as each committee title reflects by name
thereof;

WHEREAS, the Sweet Home City Council desires to combine the
Administration And Finance Committee and the Property Committee;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SWEET HOME RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:
The Administration And Finance Committee and the Propérty Committee
are hereby combined in name and function into one committee known
as the Administration And Finance Committee that shall perform the
duties of both committees henceforth.
This resolution shall be effective upon the passage thereof.

PASSED by the City Council and approved by the {layor this 13th day
of December, 2016. N \ /1

N f' .iv/ s
NS T
\ Mayor /
ATTEST: N/
: - i
L7 G
City Manager-— Es ficio o -

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 1



RESOLUTION NO. 40 FOR 1996

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING FLOOD HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING PROCESS
AND CREATING THE ALL HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING COMMITTEE.

WHEREAS, the City of Sweet Home has been faced with flooding and drainage problems
over the years that have flooded buildings, closed streets, damaged culverts, eroded channels,
disrupted business and presented a general public health and safety hazard; and

WHEREAS, the City’s All Hazard Mitigation Staff Committee has outlined a comprehensive
planning process for flood mitigation planning that will meet the requirements of the state and
federal agencies;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Sweet Home does resolve as follows:

A, The Council supports and encourages the Flood Mitigation Planning Process,
which will become a part of the updated All Hazard Mitigation Plan of the City of
Sweet Home.

B. The All Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee is hereby establighed as a
permanent advisory body. There will be a member from each of the following City
staffs: Police, Fire, Public Works, and Planning. There will be an equal number of
citizen members as City staff members who will be designated by the Mayor, subject
to the approval of this Council. They shall serve one year terms. The Committee's
duties shall be developed as a part of the All Hazard Mitigation Plan.

C The City. Manager is charged with supervising the implementation of the
planning process within the funding limitations as provided by the City Council or
other sources.

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 27th day of August, 1996,

o U

Mayor
ATTEST:

(os5=) )

City Manager Pro Tem - Ej;f fficio City Recorder

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 2



3.0 Community Involvement and Public Process

3.1 Community Involvement in Sweet Home’s Mitigation Planning

The City of Sweet Home recognizes that community involvement is an essential step
in developing a mitigation plan. The City has involved the community throughout the
mitigation planning process to help ensure that the final plan reflects the values and
needs of residents, as well as building the support base necessary 1o implement the
Plan. Citizen involvement has provided valuable historical knowledge about the
community that increases the completeness and accuracy of the Plan. The City of
Sweet Home also understands that the area's businesses and service providers also
have key information and their involvement in the planning process was also
essential.

3.2 Previous Mitigation Activities

Prior to the February flood of 1996, Sweet Home had no organized mitigation
activities excepting ihe FEMA Flood insurance Rating program which identified the
flood plains and flood ways within the City. The FIRM maps were effective as of
March 1, 1982 and have been implemented through City code since that time. The
City did have an Emergency Flan from 1981, but that Pian did not include any

mitigation activities.

After the1996 flood, the City participated in the Cascade West Council of
Government's sponsored Regional All Hazard Mitigation Plan, Phases 1, 2, and 3.
RHAMP - Phase 1 was completed in December of 1998. RHAMP - Phase 2 was
compleled in May, 2001. And the final Phase, RHAMP — Phase 3 was completed
September 2002. The City Council adopted Phases 1 and 2 on January 22, 2002
and Phase 3 on January 28, 2003. These multi-jurisdictional pians covered Linn

County and nearby counties.

3.3 All Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee

As a part of the RHAMP ~ Phase 1 process, ihe City Council passed a Resolution
creating the All Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee. The AHMPC creation on
Augusl! 27, 1996 recognized the importance of flood mitigation planning as a part of
a comprehensive All Hazard Mitigation Plan for the City. The Council established
the Committee as a permanent advisory body. Membership on the Committee
includes a staff person from Police, Fire, Public Works, and Planning with an equal
number of citizen members. The term for membership is one year, appointed by the
Mayor with approval of the Council.

The first AHMPC focused on collecling data from the February 1996 flood. The

survey work and compilation of data is discussed in Chapter 6 - Floods. The
Commitlee continued periodic meelings for the first year, and then became inactive.

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 3



In April, 2003, the City reappointed the members of the AHMPC, The new members
became very active in the preparation of this Plan. The Committee held one to two
meetings per month from April to November of 2003. Members of the Commiitee
had specific assignments, from gathering historic data to contacting community
members. The background data the Committee collecied has been used throughout
this planning process, and carries over into the Emergency Operations Plan work
that dovetails with this Plan. Hazard and risk information from the Mitigation Plan
has been incorporated inlo hazard specific annexes of the Emergency Operations

Plan.

In addition to the normal meetings, the Committee participated in two large
community meetings. The first meeting, held in July 2003, included all identified
stakeholders and the public. The information gathered at this meeling has also been
incorporated in this Plan. The Commitiee will review the final draft of the Plan, make
suggested changes, and make a recommendation to the City Council concerning the
adoption of the Plan. The second meeting, held in February 2004, included
presentation of the drafi final plan for review and comment.

3.4 Planning Process

To ensure that the Sweet Home Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan has been prepared and
reviewed by the key stakeholders within the community, the following process has
been utilized.
1, The appointment of the new members of the All Hazard Mitigation
Commiittee. :

a. Recruitment of new members was done using ads in the local paper
and personal contacts.

b. The AHMPC citizen appointed in 2003 included a retired person, an
attorney, and the manager of the local solid wasle company.

c. The AHMPC staff members included the District Fire Chief, Police
Chief, Public Works Director, Library Director, Finance Director,
Community Development Director, and the City Manager.

d. The AHMPC participated in the development of the final work plan for
the consultant on the project. This pariicipation provided critical
community input in the early stages of the planning process thai
allowed for the incorporation of citizen issues in the Plan.

e. The AHMPC gathered historical data both through literature review
and conducting interviews with area residents.

. The AHMPC met with the consultant on several occasions fo provide
local input and insight into the drafts as they were being developed.

2. Participants in all meetings of the AHMCP were notified both by email and by
regular mail notifications.

3 Materials 1o be reviewed in upcoming meetings were sent out in advanced for
members o become acquainted with prior to meetings.

4. The local newspaper, The New Era, covered stories on the hazard mitigation

planning effort.

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 4



0CWCOG (http://www.ocwcog.org/)

# (HTTP://WWW.OCWCOG.ORG/) > TRANSPORTATION (HTTP://WWW.OCWCOG.ORG/TRANSPORTATION/) >
CASCADES WEST COMMISSION ON TRANSPORTATION (HTTP:// WWW.CCWCOG.ORG/TRANSPORTATION/CWACT/),

Cascades West
Area Commission on
Transportation

The Cascades West Area Commission on Transportation (CWACT) provides a forum for
local governments to collaborate on local, regional, and State transportation issues in the
Benton, Lincoln, and Linn County Region. The CWACT is chartered by the Oregon
Transportation Commission (OTC) and provides input, advice, and recommendations to the
OTC and the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) on State transportation plans
and policies.

The CWACT typically meets from 5:00 pm to 7:00 pm on the last Thursday of every other
month at OCWCOG's building: 1400 Queen Avenue SE, Albany, OR 97322. Meeting agenda
packets are available below approximately one week in advance of each meeting.

Among other work items, the CWACT solicits publicinput on transportation needs and
provides recommendations to ODOT and the OTC on project priorities for the Statewide
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).

CWACT Membership: Each of the following entities nominates one representative and one
alternate as voting members of the CWACT. Representatives must be elected officials;
alternates need not be elected officials. Membership is confirmed annually by the OCWCOG
Board of Directors.

e Allincorporated Cities in the Cascades West Region
¢ Benton, Lincoln, and Linn Counties

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 5



« All port districts in the Cascades West Region
o All recognized Indian tribes in the Cascades West Region

The Board of Commissioners from each County nominates two private sector members
representing business and other transportation interest to be voting members of the
CWACT.

The 2018 CWACT Chair is Linn County Commissioner Roger Nyquist. The membership list is
available HERE (http://www.ocwcog.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/2018-2019-NEW-
Membership-Workbook.pdf).

Full Commission Meeting Agendas and Minutes
% May 24,2018

¢ Meeting Agenda Packet (http://www.ocwcog.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/18-
05-24-CWACT-FC-Agenda-Packet.pdf)

o Attachment C1 - Pedal Corvallis Infographic (http://www.ocwcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2018/05/Attachment-C1-Pedal-Corvallis-Infographic.pdf)

+ March 22,2018

+ Archives, 2017-2015

OCWCOG Resources

¢« 2017-2018 CWACT Membership (pdf) (http://www.ocwcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/03/2017-2018-NEW-Membership-Workbook-1.pdf)

« CWACT Executive Committee (/transportation/cwact/cwact-executive-committee/)

o CWACT Technical Committee (/transportation/cwact/cwact-technical-committee/)

» OTC Policy on Formation and Operation of ACT (pdf)
(http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/COMM/docs/acts/actpolicy0603.pdf)

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 6



o CWACT Bylaws (pdf) (http:/www.ocwcog.org/wp-
content/upioads/2016/12/cwactbylaws122916.pdf),

¢ CWACT Charter letter (pdf} (http:/www.ocwcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2016/02/CWACTCharterletter.pdf)

o CWACT-AAMPO Protacol (pdf)_(hitp:/www.ocwcog.org/wp-

content/uploads/2016/02/AAMPO-CWACTProtocol.pdf)

s CWACT-CAMPO Protocol (pdf) (hitp:/www.ocwcog,org/wp-
content/uploads/2016/0 PO-C TProtocol.pdf)

« 2016 Biennial Report (pdf)_(http:/www.ocwcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2016/12/2016-Biennial-Report-CWACT.pdf)

Contact Us

Phil Warnock

pwarnock@ocwcog.org (mailto:pwarnock@ocwcog,ore)

541-924-8474

CWACT Footprint

The map below shows the CWACT Region, which includes Linn, Benton, and Lincoln

Counties.

R
-

| YL

;
§

—
"2.:“—
et g

e P
.‘:r‘c‘,iv-‘&

f’ (http://www.ocwcog,org/wp-
ki

e i it T

|
! e

O
& !

content/uploads/2018/06/COG-jurisdictions-map.png)

External Resources

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 7



¢ Albany Call-A-Ride ¢ Lane Transit District (https:/www.ltd.org/)
(hitp://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/public e Lebanon Dial-A-Bus

works/transportation/call-a-ride-service ) (http://www.ci.lebanon.or.us/seniorservice:

o Albany Transit e lincoln County Dial-A-Ride
(http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/public (http://www.co.lincoln.or.us/transit/page/di
works/transportation/albany-transit-system ) ride)

e Benton County Dial-A-Bus ¢ Lincoln County Transit
(http://dialabus.org/) (http://www.co.lincoln.or,us/transit )

¢ Caravan Airpori Transportation ¢ Linn Shuttle (http://www linnshuttle.com/ )
{http://caravanairporttransportation.com/} ¢ Linn-Benton Loop

o Cherriots (http://www.cherriots.org/) {http:// www.taketheloop.com)

¢ Cherriots Regional ¢ Orepgon Department of Transportation
{http://www.cherriots.org/regional) (http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/)

e Corvallis Transit e Sweet Home Dial-A-Bus
(http://www.corvallisoregon.gov/index.aspx? (http://www linnshuttle.com/home.cfm?
page=167) dir cat=16929)

e Greyhound Bus Line o Trimet Portland Transit (http:/trimet.org/ )

(https://www.greyhound.com/home/ )
¢ Hut Shuttle (http://www.hutshuttie.com/)

OREGON CASCADES WEST
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

,(mps://www.facek.com/ocwcoc)_
(https://www.linkedin.com/company/284602)

ABOUT US (HTTP://WWW.OCWCOG.ORG/ABOUT/)

hitp:/vww.acweog.arg/transportation/owact/ 414
City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 8



7/612018 CHAPTER 15.01: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT—BUILDING CODE xx

CHAPTER 15.01: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT—

Sweet Home, OR Code of Ordinances

BUILDING CODE

Section
15.01.010
15.01.020
15.01.030
15.01.040
15.01.050
15.01.060
15.01.070
15.01.080
15.01.090
15.01.100
15.01.110
15.01.120
15.01.130
15.01.140
15.01.150

§ 15.01.010 TITLE.

These regulations shall be known as the “City of Sweet Home Building Code”, and will be referred to

herein as “this code™,

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.020 PURPOSE.

The purpose of this code is to establish standards and procedures within the City of Sweet Home,

Title.

Purpose.

Scope of regulations.

Definition.

Authority to disconnect utilities in emergencies.
Authority to abate hazardous equipment.
Maintenance.

Occupancy violations.

Appeals.

Plan and permits issuance.

Validity of permit.

Permit expiration, extension and reinstatement.
Work without a permit.

Non-transferability.

Violation — penalty.

Oregon. These regulations are necessary in order to:

A. Protect the public health, safety and welfare of the residents, occupants, and users of structures in

Sweet Home.

B. Provide for the use of best methods practices for the construction of structures.

http:/flibrary.amiegal .com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 9

16



7/6/2018 CHAPTER 15.01: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT—BUILDING CODE xx

C. Meet the standards and procedures for implementation of State Codes in compliance with Oregon
Revised Statutes (O.R.S.).

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.030 SCOPE OF REGULATIONS.

A. The city shall administer the State Building Code as set forth in O.R.S. Chapter 455 as now enacted
or hereafter amended.

B. This code shall apply to the construction, alteration, moving, demolition, repair, maintenance and
other work associated with any building or structure, except when located within a public right-of-way.

C. Where there is conflict between a general requirement and a specific requirement in sections of this
code, the specific requirement shall be applicable.

D. Where there is conflict between this code and any O.R.S., the O.R.S. shall govern.
(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.040 DEFINITION.

For the purpose of this title, the following definition shall apply:

BUILDING OFFICIAL. The City of Sweet Home Building Official, or a designee authorized by the
Building Official.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.050 AUTHORITY TO DISCONNECT UTILITIES IN EMERGENCIES.

A. The Building Official shall have the authority to disconnect utility services to a building, structure,
premises, or equipment regulated by this code when necessary to eliminate an immediate hazard to life or

property.

1. The Building Official shall, whenever possible, notify the serving utility, the owner and the
occupant of the decision to disconnect prior to taking such action.

2. The serving utility, owner and the occupant shall be notified in writing of such disconnection within
a reasonable time thereafter.

B. No person shall make a connection to or from an energy, fuel or power supply to any equipment
regulated by this Code which has been disconnected until authorized by the Building Official.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.060 AUTHORITY TO ABATE HAZARDOUS EQUIPMENT.

A. When the Building Official determines that equipment regulated by this code has become hazardous
to life, health, or property, the Building Official shall order the equipment either removed from its location
or restored to a safe and/or sanitary condition.

http:/ibrary.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 10



7/6/2018 CHAPTER 15.01: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT—BUILDING CODE xx

B. Notice shall be given in writing and must include a fixed time limit for compliance and a statement
that the defective equipment shall not be used until compliance has been confirmed by the Building
Official.

C. When equipment is to be disconnected, written notice of the disconnection shall be given within 24
hours to the involved utility, the owner and occupant of the building, structure, or premises, and must
include a statement of the causes for the disconnection.

D. When equipment is maintained in violation as noted in the notice, the Building Official may take
such action deemed necessary to prevent, restrain, correct, or abate the violation.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.070 MAINTENANCE.

All buildings and structures, both existing and new, and all new parts thereof, shall be maintained in a
safe and sanitary condition.

A. All devices or safeguards, which are required by this code, shall be maintained in conformance with
the code edition under which it was originally installed.

B. The owner, or the owner's designated agent, shall be responsible for the maintenance of buildings and
structures.

C. To determine compliance with this section, the Building Official may require a structure to be
inspected.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.080 OCCUPANCY VIOLATIONS.

Whenever any building, structure or equipment therein regulated by this code is used contrary to the
provisions of this code, the Building Official may order such use discontinued and the structure, or portions
thereof, vacated.

A. The Building Official shall provide notice to the owner and occupants of the structure stating a fixed
time for compliance.

B. All persons using the structure, or portion thereof, shall discontinue use within the time prescribed by
the notice and make the structure, or portion thereof, comply with the requirements of this code, as required
by the Building Official.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§15.01.090 APPEALS.

A. In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the Building
Official relating to the suitability of alternate materials and methods of construction or interpretation by the
Building Official with regard to the building code, there shall be and is hereby created a Board of Appeals.

1. The Board of Appeals shall consist of members who are qualified by experience and training to pass
on matters pertaining to building construction and who are not employees of the City of Sweet Home.

http://iibrary.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx 36

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 11



7/6/2018 CHAPTER 15.01: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT—BUILDING CODE xx

2. The Building Official shall be an ex officio member of and shall act as secretary to the Board but
shall have no vote on any matter before the Board.

3. The Board of Appeals shall be appointed by the City Council and shall hold office at its pleasure.

4, The Board shall adopt rules of procedure for conducting its business, and render all decisions and
findings in writing to the appellant with a duplicate copy to the Building Official.

5. The Board of Appeals shall have no authority relative to interpretation of the administrative
provisions of this code nor shall the Board be empowered to waive requirements of this code.

B. Appeals may be filed by any of the following, if affected by a decision:
1. The owner or authorized agent.
2. Any resident or property owner within 150 feet of a parcel of land that is the subject of the decision,

3. Any agency, officer, or department of the city, which has the responsibility for providing city
facilities and/or services to the parcel of land.

C. The time period for appeals from notices, orders, or action of the Building Official shall be ten days.
D. The Building Official shall schedule a meeting of the Board within 15 days of the filing of the appeal.
1. The Board of Appeals shall grant a hearing or dismiss the appeal.

2. The appeal shall be dismissed if not filed in compliance with Sweet Home Municipal Code §
15.01.080(B). If the appeal is dismissed, the Building Official's decision is final.

3. The hearing shall be held not later than 30 days after filing the appeal.
(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.100 PLAN AND PERMITS ISSUANCE.

The application, plans, specification, computation and other data filed by an applicant for a permit shall
be reviewed by the Building Official and other city departments to verify compliance with any applicable
laws.

A. When the Building Official finds the required submitted materials conform to the this code and other
applicable laws and all fees have been paid, the Building Official shall issue a permit to the applicant.

B. Plans approved shall be endorsed by the Building Official.

C. Approved plans and specifications shall not be changed, modified, or altered without review and
approval of the Building Official.

D. The Building Official may issue a permit for construction of a part of a building or structure before
the entire plans and specifications for the whole building or structure have been submitted or approved,
provided adequate information and detailed statements have been filed complying with all pertinent
requirements of this code. The person holding the permit shall proceed without assurance that the permit
for the entire building or structure will be granted.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.110 VALIDITY OF PERMIT.

hitp//iibrary.amlegal.com/alpscriptsiget-content.aspx 46
City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 12



7/6/12018 CHAPTER 16.01: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT—BUILDING CODE xx

A. The issuance or granting of a permit or approval of plans, specifications and computations shall not
be construed to be a permit for, or an approval of, any violation of the provisions of this code or of any
federal, state, or city law, statute, rule, regulation or ordinance.

B. The issuance of a permit based on plans, specifications and other data shall not prevent the Building
Official from requiring the correction of errors in the plans, specifications, and other application materials.

C. The issuance of a permit shall not prevent the Building Official from stopping building operations
being carried out under the permit when there is a violation of this code or any other ordinances of the city.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.120 PERMIT EXPIRATION, EXTENSION AND REINSTATEMENT.

A. Permits shall become null and void if:
1. The work authorized is not begun within 180 days from the date permit is issued.

2. After the work is begun, the work is suspended or abandoned for a period of 180 days, as
determined by the Building Official.

B. A permit shall become null and void 24 months after the date of permit issuance.

1. If the work authorized by a permit has not received final inspection approval prior to the permit
expiration date, alt work shall stop.

a. The Building Official may make an exception to this requirement at the time a permit is issued
when the permit holder can demonstrate that the complexity or size of the project makes completing the
project within 24 months unreasonable.

b. The Building Official may approve a one time extension for up to six months if the permit holder
can document sufficient progress that would indicate project completion can occur within six months.

c. A new permit must be obtained for the work remaining unfinished. The permit fees will be based
on the value of unfinished work.

C. A permit holder may submit a written request for an extension of an un-expired permit.
1. The Building Official may approve an extension of a period not exceeding 180 days.
2. No permit shall be extended more than once, except as allowed by subsection B.1.(b) of this section.

D. An expired permit can be reinstated to allow the work authorized by the original permit when all of
the following conditions can be met:

1. The applicable laws and codes under which the original permit was issued have not been amended
in a manner that affects the work authorized by the original permit.

2. No changes have been made or will be made in the original plans and specifications approved by the
original permit.

3. The original permit expired less than one year from the request to reinstate,
E. A reinstated permit shall expite on the expiration date of the original permit.

F. The fee for a reinstated permit shall cost one-half the amount of a permit authorizing the same work at
the current rate schedule.

http:/flibrary.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx 5/6
City Counci Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 13



7612018 CHAPTER 15.01: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT—BUILDING CODE xx

G. An expired permit that does not comply with the preceding criteria will not be reinstated and a new
permit, at full permit and plan review fees shall be required.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.130 WORK WITHOUT A PERMIT.

Whenever any work for which a permit is required by this code has been commenced without first
obtaining the permit, an investigation shall be made before a permit may be issued for such work,

A. An investigation fee shall be collected whether or not a permit is subsequently issued.
B. An investigation fee shall be collected in addition to required permit fees,

C. Payment of a reinstatement fee shall not exempt any person from compliance with all other
provisions of this code, nor from any penalty prescribed by law.

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.140 NON-TRANSFERABILITY.

A permit issued to a person or firm is not transferable and shall not permit any other person or firm to
perform any work authorized under a permit,

(Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

§ 15.01.150 VIOLATION--PENALTY.

A. Except for violations of building code as adopted in Sweet Home Municipal Code § 15.03.010,
failure to comply with any of the provisions and requirements of Sweet Home Municipal Code Title 15
shall constitute a violation and may be prosecuted under the provisions of Sweet Home Municipal Code
Chapter 9.36.

B. Abatement of a violation of this title can be accomplished by any remedy open to the city, including
using the procedures set out in Sweet Home Municipal Code Chapter 8.04 for the abatement of nuisances.

C. Each day that a violation exists is a separate offense.
(Ord. 1214, § 1, 2010; Ord. 1204, § 1(part), 2008)

http:/llibrary.amlegal.oom/aIpscrfptslget—content.aspx o
City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 14



7/6/2018

ORS 294.414 - Budget committee - 2017 Oregon Revised Statutes

2017 ORS 294.414'
Budget committee

(1

()

(3}

@)

(5)

(6)

)]

(8)

Except as provided in ORS 294.423 (Governing body of certain municipal corporations to be
budget committee), the governing body of each municipal corporation shall establish a budget
committee in accordance with the provisions of this section.

The budget committee shall consist of the members of the governing body and a number,
equal to the number of members of the governing body, of electors of the municipal
corporation appointed by the governing body; if there are electors fewer than the number
required, the governing body and the electors who are willing to serve shall be the budget
committee; and If there are no electors willing to serve, the governing body shall be the
budget committee.

The members of the budget committee shall receive no compensation for their services as
members of such committee.

Appointive members of the budget committee may not be officers, agents or employees of the
municipal corporation.

Appointive members of a budget committee that prepares an annuai budget shall be
appointed for terms of three years. The terms shall be staggered so that, as near as
practicable, one-third of the terms of the appointive members end each year.

Appointive members of a budget committee that prepares a biennial budget shall be
appointed for terms of four years. The terms shall be staggered so that, as near as
practicable, one-fourth of the terms of the appointive members end each year.

If any appointive member is unable to serve the term for which the member was appointed, or
an appointive member resigns prior to completion of the term for which the member was
appointed, the governing body of the municipal corporation shall fill the vacancy by
appointment for the unexpired term.

If the number of members of the governing body is reduced or increased by law or charter
amendment, the governing body of the municipal corporation shall reduce or increase the
number of appointive members of the budget committee sc that the number thereof shall be
equal to but not greater than the number of members of the governing body. To effect a
reduction, the governing body of the municipal corporation may remove such number of
appointive members as may be necessary. The removals shall be made so that the number
remaining will be divided into three, if the terms of the appointive members are governed by
subsection (5) of this section, or four, if the terms of the appointive members are governed by

hitps:/Awww.oregonlaws.orglors/294.414 1/2

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 15



7/6/2018 ORS 294.414 - Budget commitiee - 2017 Oregon Revised Statutes
subsection (6) of this section, equal or approximately equal groups as to terms. In case of an
increase, additional appointive members shall be appointed for such terms so that they,
together with the members previously appointed, will be divided into three or four, as
appropriate under this section, equal or approximately equal groups as to terms.

{9) The budget committee shall at its first meeting after its appointment elect a presiding officer
from among its members. [Formerly 294.336]

1 Legislative Counsel Committee, CHAPTER 294—County and Municipal Financial Administration,
https:/fwww.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors294.htmi (2017) (last accessed Mar. 30, 2018).

https://www.oregonlaws.orgfors/294.414
City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 16



CHAPTER 2.12: LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES Page 1 of 3

Sweet Home, OR Code of Ordinances

CHAPTER 2.12: LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section
2.12.010 Library—Established.
2.12.020 Library Board.
2.12.030 Board organization.
2.12.040 Library Board—General powers.
2.12.050 Acceptance of gifts for library purposes.
2.12.060 Internal administrative policies and procedures.

2.12.070 Prohibited actions and penalties.

§ 2.12.010 LIBRARY—ESTABLISHED.

A. A public library is established for the city under the provisions of O.R.S. 357.400 to
357.621.

B. The public library shall be financed through the use of General Fund monies, revenue
obtained from the operation of the library, grants, gifts, donations and bequests received and
designated to be used for library purposes and any tax levies that may be authorized by the
electors.

C. The Sweet Home Public Library shall be the public agency responsible for providing and
making freely accessible to all residents in the city library and information services suitable to
persons of all ages.

(Ord. 983, 1989)

§ 2.12.020 LIBRARY BOARD.

A. The Sweet Home Public Library Board is created. The Board shall consist of five members
to be appointed by the City Council.

B. The term of office of the Board members shall be four years and their terms shall
commence on July 1 in the year of their appointment. The terms of office shall be staggered so
that the terms of not more than two Board members will expire in the same year. Of the first five
Board members appointed, one member shall initially hold office for one year, one for two years,
one for three years and two for four years. At the expiration of the term of any members of the

http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx City Gouncil Packet 07-10-18 - WS plg2@9/2014



CHAPTER 2.12: LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES Page 2 of 3

Board, the City Council shall appoint a new member or may reappoint a member for a term of
four years. If a vacancy occurs during a term of office, the governing body shall appoint a new
member for the balance of the unexpired term.

C. Members of the Board shall receive no compensation for their services, but may be
reimbursed for expenses incurred in the performance of their duties.

(Ord. 983, 1989)

§ 2.12.030 BOARD ORGANIZATION.

A. The Library Board shall elect a chairperson and vice-chairperson.

B. The Library Director shall be an ex-officio member and shall serve as Secretary to the
Board and keep the record of its actions.

C. Three appointed members of the Board shall constitute a quorum.

D. The Board may establish and amend rules and regulations for its government and
procedure consistent with the laws of the state and with the Charter, ordinances, resolutions and
regulations of the city.

E. The Board shall meet at least once a month and at such other times as it may provide by its
rules.

(Ord. 983, 1989)

§ 2.12.040 LIBRARY BOARD—GENERAL POWERS.

The Library Board shall be an advisory board and shall have no executive or administrative
powers or authority and this chapter shall not be construed as depriving elected or appointed
officials of the city of any power they may have under the laws of the state or the Charter of the
city. The Board shall have powers and duties as follows.

A. Upon request by the City Manager, the Library Board may assist in the interview process
of selecting and appointing a library director. The City Manager, as the fiscal and administrative
agent for the library, shall have primary responsibility for library personnel, including
recruitment, selection, classification and pay and supervision.

B. The Library Board shall make recommendations to the City Council about rules and
policies for the efficient and effective operation of the library, its services and programs.

C. The Library Board shall approve the budget request prepared by the Library Director for
submittal to the Budget Committee.

D. The Library Board shall make recommendations for the acceptance, use or expenditure of
any real or personal property or funds donated to the library under § 2.12.050.

E. The Library Board shall make recommendations for the selection of sites for public library
buildings or for location of library facilities.

http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx City Gouncil Packet 07-10-18 - WS 3924%9/20 14



CHAPTER 2.12: LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES Page 3 of 3

F. The Library Board shall approve an annual report to the state library and to the City
Council submitted in a timely manner on a form supplied by the state library.

G. The Library Board shall develop and recommend to the City Council long-range plans for
library service, consistent with city priorities and with state, regional and national goals for
libraries.

(Ord. 983, 1989)

§ 2.12.050 ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS FOR LIBRARY PURFPOSES.

Gifts of any real or personal property or funds donated to the library and accepted by the
governing body shall be administered in accordance with each gift’s terms and all property or
funds shall be held in the name of the city.

(Ord. 983, 1989)

§ 2.12.060 INTERNAL ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.

The City Manager shall be the fiscal and internal administrative agent for the Sweet Home
Public Library and the library shall operate in conformance with city administrative procedures,
including those pertaining to the following:

A. Personnel, including recruitment, selection, classification and pay for library personnel;
B. Receipt, disbursement and accounting for monies;

C. Maintenance of general books, cost accounting records and other financial documents;
D. Budget administration; and

E. Operation and maintenance of equipment and buildings.

(Ord. 983, 1989)

§2.12.070 PROHIBITED ACTIONS AND PENALTIES.

A. Tt shall be unlawful for any person to willfully or maliciously detain any library materials
belonging to the Sweet Home Public Library for 30 days after notice in writing from the Library
Director that the library material is past due. The notice shall bear, upon its face, a copy of this
section.

B. Violation of subsection A. of this section is punishable upon conviction by a fine of not
less than $25, nor more than $200, and may be prosecuted under the provisions of Chapter 9.36
as now enacted and thereafter amended. The conviction and payment of the fine shall not be
construed to constitute payment for library material, nor shall a person convicted under this
section be thereby relieved of any obligation to return the material to the library.

(Ord. 983, 1989)

http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS 33@9/20 14



CHAPTER 2.08: LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD Page 1 of 1

Sweet Home, OR Code of Ordinances

CHAPTER 2.08: LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD

Section
2.08.010 Designated.
2.08.020 City Council—Authority.

§ 2.08.010 DESIGNATED.

Pursuant to O.R.S. 279A.060, the City Council is designated as the Local Contract Review
Board for the city. Relative to contract concerns of the city, and not as a limit thereon, the Board
shall have all the powers granted under state law to a local contract review board.

(Ord. 1203, § 1, 2008; Ord. 659, 1976)

§ 2.08.020 CITY COUNCIL—AUTHORITY.

The City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, shall adopt rules to govern
public contracts of the city.

(Ord. 1203, § 1, 2008; Ord. 659, 1976)

hitp://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx City Gouncil Packet 07-10-18 - WS g0/ 2014



ORDINANCE BILL NO. 9 FOR 2017

ORDINANCE NO. 1263

SWEET HOME ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING CERTAIN CITY COMMITTEES

THE CITY OF SWEET HOME DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. Sweet Home Municipal Code Chapter 2.10 is created to read as follows:

CHAPTER 2.10 CITY COMMITTEES
Section

2.10.010 Establishment.
2.10.020 Membership.
2.10.030 Terms of office.
2.10.040 Rules of committee
2.10.050 Powers and duties.

2.10.010 ESTABLISHMENT.

There are established the following committees to serve at the pleasure and in service to the
City Council:

1. Park And Tree Committee

2. Public And Traffic Safety Committee

2.10.020 MEMBERSHIP.

A. Each Committee listed in SHMC 2.10.010 shall consist of seven voting members
appointed by the Mayor with members confirmed by the City Council.

B. Each Committee may have up to three non-voting ex-officio members who are appointed
by the Mayor.

C. Each Committee shall have a Chairperson elected by the Commitiee and a Vice-
chairperson elected by the Committee who shall have the same authority as the Chairperson when
the Chairperson is absent.

D. Not more than two of the voting members of a Committee shall be non-residents of the
city. A non-resident member must reside within the boundaries of the Sweet Home School District
No. 55. The non-resident provision does not apply to any current member of a committee, board or
commission that is being reorganized hereby.

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 21



E. Ifa vacancy occurs during a term of office the Mayor may appoint a city council member
or non-council member with confirmation by the City Council to serve for the duration of the term
of office on the Committee.

2.10.030 TERMS OF OFFICE.
A. This section shall not apply to an ex-officio member of a Committee.

B. The term of office of each committee member is four years or until a successor is
appointed and confirmed as set forth above.

C. The term of office of each committee member shall be staggered so that the terms of not
more than three committee members will expire in the same year.

D. Notwithstanding subsection B of this section the committee members of the first
Committee appointed and confirmed shall draw lots for the length of their terms of office so that
three members shall serve two years.

2.10.040 RULES OF COMMITTEE

A. The Committee shall take minutes of its meetings and submit copies of its minutes to the
City Council and shall prepare and submit such reports as from time to time may be requested of it
by the City Council or other city committees, boards or commissions.

B. In all cases not specifically provided for herein or in city charter, ordinance or rule, the
Committee shall be governed by the law and precedents laid down in the then current edition of

Robert’s Rules Of Order.

C. A majority of committee members is a quorum to conduct business and the concurrence
of a majority of a quorum shall be required to determine any matter before the Committee.

D. Voting members of a Committee shall receive no compensation for services rendered.
The Committee may receive gifts, bequests or devises of property to carry out any of the purposes
of the Committee. Gifts of any real or personal property or funds donated to the Committee and
accepted by the governing body shall be administered in accordance with each gift’s terms and all
property or funds shall be held in the name of the city.

E. A Committee shall be an advisory committee and shall have no executive or administrative

powers or authority and this chapter shall not be construed as depriving elected or appointed officials
of the city of any power they may have under the laws of the state, charter or ordinances of the city.

City Council Packet 07-10-18 - WS pg. 22



F. Any member who misses two consecutive meetings without a leave of absence granted
by the Chairperson will be asked to step down and a new member will be appointed and confirmed
as set forth above to fill the vacancy.

G. The minutes of the Committee shall be included in the City Council packets.

H. All annual reports of a Committee for the City Council shall be presented before April 1,
of each year.

2.10.050 POWERS AND DUTIES
PARK AND TREE COMMITTEE:
The powers and duties of the Park And Tree Commitee shall be as follows:

1. To conduct an inventory of existing street trees, including historical trees and public
properties in need of beautification and plantings and present a written report to the City Council of

its findings;

2. To develop and recommend to the City Council, for its adoption, a master list of trees
suitable for planting within the city. The list shall be reviewed annually, a copy of which shall be
kept on file in the office of the City Recorder for public information;

3. To develop and recommend to the City Council, for its adoption, ordinances and policies
for the planting, care, maintenance, replacement and protection of trees throughout the city;

4. To act in an advisory capacity to the Planning Commission with respect to landscape
design, suitable plantings, protection of natural vegetation and street tree requirements;

5. To submit recommendations to the City Council regarding the beautification of public
properties and rights-of-way;

6. To promote public knowledge and acceptance of the value of ftree planting and
maintenance programs and require